M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 24, 2002
9:33 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 2, Side A
SFC 02 # 2, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:33 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Loren Lenan

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATI VE ELDON MJULDER;, KIM DUKE, Executive
Director, Arctic Power: DENNY DEWTT, Legi sl ative A de,
Representative Mul der; NI CO BUS, Adm nistrative Services Manager,
Di vi sion of Support Services, Departnent of Natural Resources

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: STEVE CONN, Al aska
Public Interest Research Goup; From NMat-Su: JIM SYKES, From
Fai r banks: FRED BROWN, nenber, Central Labor Council; JOHN BROW,
President, Central Labor Council; DON LOARY; LUCI BEACH LEON
TOVASI C, DEBBI E M LLER

SUMVARY | NFORNMATI ON

HB 334- APPROP: GRANT TO ARCTI C POAER FOR ANVR

The Comm ttee heard testinony on HB 334. The Commi ttee consi dered
but failed to pass one amendnent. The bill nmoved from Commttee.

#HB334

SFC- 02 (1) 01/ 24/ 02



CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 334(FIN)

"An Act making appropriations for a grant to Arctic Power to
pronote the opening of the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge for
oil and gas exploration and devel opnent; and providing for an
effective date.”

[Audio difficulties]

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

DENNY DEW TT, Legislative Aide, Representative Eldon Milder,
informed the Committee this bill would appropriate approxi mately
$624,000 of a balance of $697,000 renmaining from a FY 02
appropriation for the gas pipeline study authorized through the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Conmittee al ong with $400,000 fromthe
general fund. He continued that $100, 000 of the $400,000 is for a
vi deo project on the value of opening the arctic plain by the Gty
of Kaktovik. He stressed this is inportant |egislation and “shoul d
nove quickly as the opportunity to persuade a few nenbers of the
United States Senate is upon us as they will be considering the
energy package rather quickly.” He noted the support the Bush
Adm nistration and the fact that the Al aska National Wldlife
Refuge (ANWR) |egislation has already passed the United States
House of Representatives.

KI M DUKE, Executive Director, Arctic Power, inforned the Commttee
that Arctic Power has been established for approximately ten years,
and its purpose is to open the coastal plain of ANWR for oil and
gas exploration. She noted that Arctic Power hel ped get |egislation
passed to open ANWR in 1995 in the United States House of
Representatives and Senate; however President Cinton vetoed that
| egi sl ation. She stated “Arctic Power has been working hard to keep
menbers of Congress educated on the issues and have been waiting
for the opportune tinme to open the canpai gn up again.” She infornmed

that Arctic Power received a $2 nmillion grant |ast year.

Ms. Duke noted energy bill legislation that includes ANWR was
approved by the United States House of Representatives, | ast
August; however, “the work to nonitor additional provisions to that
| egi slation,” has exceeded Arctic Power’s FY 02 funding. She

stressed that the additional funding in this request woul d enabl e
Arctic Power to target a “very intensive three-nonth canpaign to
get the energy bill noved through the Senate.” She noted
indications fromthe admnistration that “now is the tinme to get
this |l egislation noved.” She noted positive reversal of positions

SFC- 02 (2) 01/ 24/ 02



fromother states’ |egislators and supportive noteworthy newspaper
editorials such as one in the Chicago Tribune.

Senator Hoffrman referred to the three-nonth extensive canpaign
timeframe and questioned that the date of June 30, 2006 in the
material provided to the Commttee exceeds the normal anount of
time for an appropriation.

M. DeWtt responded that the choice of dates was based on the
hi storical capital appropriation to Arctic Power.

Senat or W ken asked Ms. Dukes to explain the information on the
ANVWR Program 2001 sheet [copy on file].

Ms. Duke detailed the total grant appropriation of $1,957,181. 04,
and that the breakout of the expenditures are not included in the
total. She detail ed what the expenditures included.

Senator Wl ken asked if all those funds had been spent.

Ms. Duke replied that yes, those funds were expended by Decenber of
2001, with the balance of the $2 million grant not spent but
all ocated for expenditure.

Senator WIlken clarified these funds were allocated in 2001. He
asked what the oil conpanies were doing to support this endeavor.

Ms. Duke replied the oil conpanies are very involved in supporting
Arctic Power in its mssion to have ANVR opened to expl oration. She
inforned that the oil conpanies have donated | arge suns of noney in
addition to hosting congressional nmenbers and staff as well other
people on their chartered flights and tours of the North Slope
facilities, often including food and | odgi ng. She stressed that the
oi | conpani es have been very accommobdating in these aspects. She
informed that the oil conpanies have representation on Arctic
Power’s Board of Directors and are involved in fund raising
efforts.

Senator W1 ken asked if Arctic Power docunents these in-kind and
nonet ary donati ons.

Ms. Duke responded this information is tracked “to an extent on a
casual in-kind list.” She noted that Arctic Power tracks their
budget “very carefully in order to break out percentage of
participation for their annual budget.” She stated she could supply
those nunbers to the Committee. She stated that the tour
contribution efforts are not tracked, although Arctic Power could
investigate that further “with sone effort.”

SFC- 02 (3) 01/ 24/ 02



Senator WIlken reiterated this is a valid question that would
enabl e the people of Alaska to “know at what |evel oil conpanies
and ot hers who benefit fromthis endeavor” are contributing.

Senat or Austerman stated the supporting docunentation for this bil
does not supply any information that shows the total budget for
Arctic Power and the source of additional operating funds. He said
that knowi ng what the total budget is would be a reference point
for the legislature and would be appropriate for use when the
public asks |l egislators about the state funding of Arctic Power. He
requested Arctic Power to supply the legislature with a total
budget that reflects “how much noney is being spent and where the
noney is comng from” He stated that this should include any
menbership fees. He reiterated this information would give the
| egi slature and the public a “better idea” as to how other entities
were assisting Arctic Power in its endeavor.

Ms. Duke responded that Arctic Power’s 2001 financial statenment is
not finalized yet; however, it should be conplete within a few
weeks. She infornmed that 47 percent of the 2001 budget was funded
with state funds and 53 percent from other sources.

Senator Austerman stated the report does not include any
information regardi ng these percentages and he feels that the fact
that 53 percent of Arctic Power’s budget is fromother sources is
“inmportant information.”

REPRESENTATI VE ELDON MJULDER stated that he had discussed this
di sclosure topic with the managenent of Arctic Power and the reason
behind this informati on not being included in the past is because
t he managenent feels this is confidential information and “it m ght
tip off their hand in relations to strategy and strategic
decisions.” He continued, “this is a very intensive canpaign
agai nst a very well-funded extrem sts environnental novenent that
is very active.”

Representati ve Mil der continued that Arctic Power would be willing
to share this information in a confidential manner with the
Conmittee.

Senat or Austerman voiced understanding of the situation, but
stressed that the public asks these questions, and it would be
beneficial to legislators to have the information.

Represent ati ve Mul der agreed.

Senat or Hof fman noted that a letter [copy not provided] addressed

SFC- 02 (4) 01/ 24/ 02



to Co-Chair Donley from Conm ssioner Pat Pourchot of the Departnent
of Natural Resources, dated January 23, 2002, states there is an
unused bal ance of $600,000, yet the appropriation specifies an
unused bal ance of $697, 000.

Representati ve Mul der expl ai ned the anount included in the bill was
originally $800, 000, but after consultation wth Senator
Therriault, Chair of the Legislative Budget & Audit LB&A
Commttee, who is actually the hol der of the funds, the nunber was
revised to $700,000 as a nore accurate balance. Representative
Mul der stated that as of today, “this amount is still a good
nunber.” He stated the amount included in Conm ssioner Pourchot’s
letter mght be a reflection that the Departnent envisioned
spending this noney another way; however, this requested
appropriation anmunt “would stand” as Representative Ml der
understood from Senator Therriault that the gas pipeline work was
“basically finished,” and that the funds should be reallocated to a
“project of a simlar fashion.”

AT EASE 9:52 AM 9:56 AM
[ Audi o difficulties]

Nl CO BUS, Admnistrative Services Mnager, Division of Support
Servi ces, Departnent of Natural Resources, inforned that the unused
funds being transferred to Arctic Power is a portion of the $1.5
mllion appropriation for gasline work. He infornmed that for the
past seven nonths, he had been responsible for the accounting of
this nmoney. In answer to the question of whether there is $600, 000
or $700, 000 renmi ning of the allocation, he stated that at the end
of Decenber, after working on the expenditures with all the
agencies involved, “the total balance remaining was $600, 000
i ncludi ng accruals.” He continued that the final *“January through
June budget” for the Gas Pipeline Ofice, conbined with the
nonetary commtnents from oil producers to the gas pipeline
project, brings the “total funds to $900, 000, although this nunber
is not certain.” He continued the Departnent’s recommendation is
that the gas pipeline remaining bal ance “be expensed into FY 03 to
hel p cover costs incurred for closing the pipeline office or for
future operations of the Gas Pipeline Ofice.”

Senator Ward asked if the Gas Pipeline Ofice is authorized to
spend nore than was approved by the Chair of LB&A Committ ee.

M. Bus responded that the |ast agreenent with the Chair of LGRA

Committee was that the pipeline office has up to $900, 000 to spend
in FY 02.

SFC- 02 (5) 01/ 24/ 02



M. Bus answered a question of Senator Ward’'s noting that the Chair
of the LB&A Conmittee “was making an assunption that sone of the
accruals were not going to materialize,” whereas M. Bus believes
there “will be nore accruals than anticipated.” He stated that the
office is “trying to finalize those accruals” to have a firnmer
bal ance figure.

Senator Ward asked if the npbst recent agreenment wth the
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Commttee nmeant that the Gas Pipeline
Ofice “was not authorized to spend nore than a certain anmount of
noney and woul d need aut horization fromthe Legislative Budget and
Audit Conmittee Chair to exceed that.”

M. Bus agreed that was the agreenent, and the Ofice had received
“two approvals; one for $585,000 and one for $430,000 which is
close to $1.1 million.” He said the Ofice has gone back to the
Chair and informed himthat it appeared the Ofice would be getting
“$200, 000 of the commitments back that woul d adjust the agreenents
to $900,000.” He inforned that the Ofice “did not agree to adjust
| ower than that.

Senat or Ward responded that the office was not in the position of
getting the Chair to agree, but rather were “in the situation of
getting authorization from the chairman to go to whatever |imt
there was.”

M. Bus said “the agreenment was now in excess of $1.1 mllion
dollars, and that the Ofice had been able to adjust that down to
$900, 000.” He continued that the “anpbunt m ght be adjusted even
| ower, but the Ofice is not in a position currently to determ ne
that.”

Co- Chai r Donl ey announced that tel econference testinony woul d begin
and would be limted to one m nute.

FRED BROWN, nenber, Alaska State Enployees Association and
Fai rbanks Central Labor Council, testified via tel econference from
Fai rbanks to urge support of HB 334. He stated there is no better
investnent the |legislature “can make than in the jobs” that would
result fromexploration on the Arctic Coastal Plain and “no better
econom ¢ stinulus package for Anmerica than the passage of the
energy bill in the United States Senate.”

JOHN BROWN President, Fairbanks Central Labor Council, testified
via teleconference from Fairbanks in support of HB 334. He stated,
“it makes sense for working famlies in Alaska.” He stated that if
the United States Senate approves the energy package, the
correspondi ng jobs would be “good jobs,” and it is inperative to

SFC- 02 (6) 01/ 24/ 02



support it. He said that opposition to the energy bill is “well
organi zed, well funded and is working hard to prevent the passage
of this legislation in Washington.” He stressed that oil conpanies
have proven they can conduct “responsibl e devel opnent.”

DON LOARY, representing Operating Engineers, testified via
t el econference from Fairbanks, in support of opening ANVR and to
stress he fully supports HB 334. He feels this small area of
devel opment woul d have “little inpact on the environnent.”

JIM SYKES testified via tel econference from Mat-Su and referenced
corments in his faxed correspondence to the Conmmittee [copy on
file] that states his opposition to HB 334. He reiterated that oil
produced fromthe Arctic Refuge “generates 44 percent |ess revenue
per barrel than oil produced on state |ands.”

STEVE CONN testified via teleconference from Anchorage in
opposition to HB 334. He cited that “corporate welfare and
pandering have created the current fiscal crisis,” the lack of
i nvestigation into high gas prices, no investigation of undevel oped
property under Jlease to the state, and no accurate state
accounti ng.

LUCI BEACH testified via tel econference from Fairbanks and stated
her opposition to funding an oil |obby group instead of
appropriating noney to Arctic Village which is dedicated to
protecting lifestyles and caribou herds, or to education prograns
for children. She voiced her opposition to HB 334 and said that
Arctic Power “should look first to oil conpanies for funding, not
the state.”

LEON TQOWASI C, retired construction worker, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks in support of HB 334. He stated that
oi | conpanies have “continually devel oped environnentally sound
ways to do things.” He said this is “a chance for good jobs, not
service jobs.”

DEBBIE MLLER testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that
things are | ooking bright on the North Slope with increased oi
flows this year. She inforned that the state has 14 mllion acres
of land set aside for oil devel opnment and the state will |ose noney
if ANWR is opened. She said that “Arctic Power is a | obbying
organi zati on” and she does not support HB 334. She urged the
Commttee to seek | egal council before holding any action on this
request.

Senator O son voiced concern that if sufficient funds were not
avai l able from the Departnment of Natural Resources to cover this

SFC- 02 (7) 01/ 24/ 02



request, he woul d, nonethel ess, want Kaktovik to get full funding
for their project.

Senat or Austernman asked what would happen if the Departnment of
Nat ural Resources “does not have this level of unused funds,”
specifically if Arctic Power would “cone up short” if the $100, 000
was designated to fund the Kaktovi k project.

M. DeWtt said he had spoken with Senator Therriault’s staff today
and was assured there is $697,000 available for this funding
request. He continued that if the available funding were |less, the
appropriation to Arctic Power would be reduced; however, the
funding for Kaktovik would be from general funds and would be
preserved.

Senator Austerman clarified Arctic Power would be the one short-
funded in this case.

M. DeWtt said, “Yes, that woul d be the expectation.”

Senat or Hof fman asked if the dollars spent included those that have
been encunber ed.

M. DeWtt responded the Legislative Budget and Audit Committee
staff in Senator Therriault’'s office indicated confidence that
there woul d be $697, 000 avail abl e.

Amendrent #1: This anmendnent inserts |anguage on page 1, line 2
foll ow ng “devel opnent”. The anended bill title reads as foll ows.

An Act making appropriations for a grant to Arctic Power to
pronote the opening of the Arctic National WIdlife Refuge for
oi | and gas exploration and devel opnent; maki ng an
appropriation for tourism marketing prograns; nmaking an
appropriation for sal non marketing prograns; and providing for
an effective date.

This anendnent also inserts two new bill sections to read as
foll ows.

Sec. 2. TOURI SM | NDUSTRY ASSI STANCE PACKAGE. (a) The sum
of $800,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the
Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent for the
fiscal years ending June 30, 2002, and June 30, 2003, for
paynment as a grant under AS 37.05.316 to the Al aska Trave
| ndustry Associ ation for additional tourismmarketing efforts
to mtigate the economc inpacts to the Alaska tourism
industry from the Septenber 11, 2001 terrorist attacks. The

SFC- 02 (8) 01/ 24/ 02



anount appropriated in this subsection includes $250, 000 for
i nternational tourism marketing.

(b) The sum of $200,000 is appropriated fromthe genera
fund to the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, Al aska Marine H ghway system for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 2002, and June 30, 2003, for additional
marketing efforts to mtigate the economc inpacts to the
Al aska tourismindustry fromthe Septenber 11, 2001, terrorist
at t acks.

Sec. 3. SALMON | NDUSTRY ASSI STANCE PACKACGE. (a) The sum
of $1,000,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the
Departnent of Comrunity and Econom c Devel opnent, Al aska
Seaf ood Marketing Institute, for the fiscal years ending June
30, 2002, and June 30, 2003 to inplenent expanded
i nternational salnon niche marketing prograns in devel oping
overseas markets, to conduct strategic sal non nmarket anal ysis,
and for grants to devel op and support regional salnon niche
mar keti ng prograns.

Senat or Hof f man voi ced full support of the HB 334 appropriation and
felt that the Coommittee should make sure that the econom c health
of Alaska is fully addressed. He of fered Anmendnent #1 and detail ed
the amendnent funding. He noted the governor’'s request of $10
mllion each for the salnon industry and tourism industry. He
stated that tinme was of the essence and the governor’s deadline for
the fast track supplenental was in md February.

Senat or Hof fman’ s voi ced concern that the potential inpact to the
state of Al aska would be nore than one third of a billion dollars
in business losses to the travel industry. He stated that people
are “making travel plans or not nmaking thenf now He stressed that
in addition to the inmediate travel industry loss, the “nultiplier
factor” would be far-reaching.

He noted that the Al aska Seaf ood Marketing Industry (ASM) needs a
head start in their marketing and cannot wait for the Legislature
to take action in md or |ate March.

Senat or Hof fman stated that although he supports the $1 mllion for
Arctic Power his concern is that by giving noney to this effort,
the state m ght end up taking noney from the sal non industry. He
continued that the prospect of Arctic Power being successful inits
endeavor is good and the subsequent profit for the state would be
“very high.” He stated that the benefits from the salnon and
tourismindustry are “even better” than those from ANVR He stated
that the legislature should support these industries for the
“econom c health of state.” He stated these three industries

SFC- 02 (9) 01/ 24/ 02



provi de the highest nunber of jobs in the state of Alaska and this
is his reason for submtting this anendnent. He continued that when
t he governor submts his supplenmental the remai nder of the funding
coul d be addressed.

Senat or Hof f man noved for adoption of the amendnent.
Senat or Aust er man obj ect ed.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked what is the funding source for subsection (b)
in Section 2.

Senator Hoffman replied that it is the sanme fundi ng source as the
House of Representatives appropriation.

SFC 01 # 2, Side B 10:26 AM

Co-Chair Donley questioned if this is a reappropriation fromthe FY
02 Marine H ghway System appropriation and the proposed FY 03
appropri ation.

Senat or Hof fman restated Section 2 | anguage.

Co-Chair Donley infornmed that he was currently working on the FY 03
operating budget wth Representative Milder, and they were
i nvestigating a fundi ng assi stance package for tourism He stressed
that a timeframe for identifying a funding source was uncertain;
however, it was being addressed. He stated his coments are not a
comm tment or an assurance that the funds woul d be avail abl e, but
rather notification that the funds are bei ng sought.

Senat or Hof f man asked Co-Chair Donley what an expected tinefrane
m ght be for addressing this funding.

Co-Chair Donley responded that legislation regarding a tourism
fundi ng source mght be introduced the foll owing week in the House
of Representatives. He stressed he was not promsing that if the
Comm ttee does not adopt this amendnment, another funding source
woul d be avail abl e.

Senator Hoffman asked if there was any simlar effort being
advanced for the sal non industry.

Co- Chair Donl ey conmented he was not aware of any.

Co-Chair Donley said the Conmittee should recognize that this

SFC- 02 (10) 01/ 24/ 02



amendnment would require a title change to the bill, as it does not
fit under the original title fromthe House of Representatives. He
stated this title change woul d have to be separate |egislation

Senat or Leman expressed appreciation for Senator Hoffman's purpose
to support the tourismand sal non industries; however, he coul d not
support this anendnent at this tinme. He continued there are other
vehi cl es avail able for possible funding, and he felt anmending this
bill is inappropriate for that purpose. He stated he would like to
continue conversations on how to support these industries.

Co- Chair Donl ey voi ced appreciation for Senator Hoffrman’s
concerns. He stated that this bill needs to be advanced to the
Senate floor; however, the tourismand sal non i ndustries’
situations require nore discussion. He stated he opposes the
amendnent as this tine.

Aroll call was taken on the notion.
I N FAVOR: Senator Hof f man and Senat or d son

OPPCSED: Senat or Austerman, Senator G een, Senator Leman Senat or
Ward, Senator WI ken, and Co-Chair Donl ey

ABSENT: Co-Chair Kelly
The notion FAILED (2-6-1)

The anmendnent FAILED to be adopted.

Senator Ward offered a nmotion to nove CS HB 334 (FIN) from
Committee.

Senat or Austerman objected. He stated Arctic Power, the tourism
i ndustry, the salnmon industry, and nunmerous other entities need
noney. He opined the state needs to address an “overall forward
| ooki ng financial plan” for the state.

Senator Ward agreed with Senator Austerman that the state needs an
overall plan; however, he asserted HB 334 is part of the overal
plan. He stated ANVR i s one of the key elenents to the state plan,
and it needs to be addressed on a national level, as it is a
benefit for all of Alaska today and in the future.

Aroll call was taken on the notion.

IN FAVOR: Senator G een, Senator Hoffman, Senator Ward, Senator
W | ken, Co-Chair Donl ey, Senator Lenman, Senator J son

SFC- 02 (11) 01/ 24/ 02



OPPCSED: Senat or Aust er nan
ABSENT: Co-Chair Kelly
The notion PASSED (7-1-1)

The bill MOVED fromconmtt ee.

Senator O son voi ced appreciation to the Commttee for the support

of this bill on behalf of the community of KaktoviKk.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey adjourned the neeting at 10: 35 AM

SFC- 02

(12)

01/ 24/ 02



